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EXHIBITS  
          

1) 6/22/08 Trans Union Responses to Baker’s Requests for Admissions 
 

2) 6/22/08 Trans Union Responses to Baker’s Interrogatories 
 

3) 6/22/08 Trans Union Responses to Baker’s Requests for Production of Documents 
 

4) Trans Union communications TU 0005 – TU 0008 
 

5) 5/21/04 Trans Union letter re. files A and B to attorney Lewis TU 0038 – TU 0039 
 

6) 2/12/05 Baker’s request for termination NCO and Dana Capital TU 0070 – TU 0090 
 

7) 8/22/05 Baker’s Trans Union dispute of unrated accounts (PrivacyGuard) TU 0144 
 

8) 8/25/05 Trans Union report p. 5, NCO and First USA (Chase) inquiries TU 0153 
 

9) 9/10/05 Trans Union deletion of positive Capital One account TU 0164 - TU 0165 
 

10) 5/1/05 Baker’s request to remove fraud alert TU 0192 – TU 0195 
 

11) 5/20/08 Trans Union credit report TU 0197 – TU 0205 
 

12) 2/8/08 Trans Union Investigation Results deleting NCO inquiry 
 

13) 5/27/08 NCO responses to Baker’s discovery requests 
 

14) 8/2/08 TrueCredit website terms 
 

15) Baker’s blog posts about Trans Union’s repeated failure to report a client’s discharged 
Capital One account with the Date Closed. 
 

16) myFICO order screen with Trans Union “locked.” 
 

17) FTC Comments on FCRA 
 

18) Trinity junk fax and Mutual Benefit loan approval at 1% 
 

19) Trans Union 3/10/08 reporting of the client’s Capital One account without the date 
closed. 
 

20) Trans Union 3/15/06 letter acknowledging receipt of Baker’s dispute on behalf of 
client. 
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Donald E. Bradley (California State Bar No. 145037)� 
d.bradley@mpglaw.com� 
MUSICK, PEELER & GARRETT LLP� 
650 Town Center Drive, Suite 1200� 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626� 
Telephone: (714) 668-2447� 
FacsImile: (714) 668-2490� 

Admitted pro hac vice 

Phillip R. Wooten (Arizona State Bar No. 007006) 
PHILLIP R. WOOTEN, P.c. 
3413 East Equestrian Trail 
Phoenix, Arizona 85044-3403 
Telephone: (480) 598-4330 
FacsImile: (480) 598-4331 

Attorneys for Defendant TRANS UNION LLC 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF ARIZONA 

CHRISTINE BAKER, Case No. CV 07 08032-JAT 

Assigned to the Honorable James A. TeilborgPlaintiff, 

vs. 

TRANS UNION LLC, EQUIFAX DEFENDANT TRANS UNION LLC’S 
INFORMATION SERVICES LLC, RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFF’S REQUEST 
EXPERIAN INFORMATION FOR ADlVIISSIONS 
SOLUTIONS, INC., NCO 
FINANCIAL SYSTEMS, INC., [SET ONE] 
DANA CAPITAL GROUP, DANA 
SMITH, MUTUAL BENEFIT 
FUNDING, ANTHONY PADUANO, 
VINCENT SANFILIPPO 

Defendants. 

PROPOUNDING PARTY: Plaintiff, CHRISTINE BAKER 

RESPONDING PARTY: Defendant, TRANS UNION LLC 

SET NO.: ONE 

DEFENDANT TRANS UNION LLC’S RESPONSE TO� 
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Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure ("FRCP") 36, Trans Union LLC 

("Trans Union") responds to Plaintiff s First Set of Request for Admissions as follows: 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

These responses are made by Defendant solely for the purpose of this action 

and are subject to all objections as to competence, relevance, materiality, propriety, and 

admissibility and any and all other objections on any grounds that would require the 

exclusion of any statement herein if the infonnation contained in these responses were asked 

of, or statements contained herein were made by, a witness present and testifying in court, 

all of which objections and grounds are strictly reserved and may be interposed at the time 

of trial. 

The following responses are based upon the information and writings 

presently available to and located by Defendant. Defendant has not yet completed 

investigations of the facts relating to this case and has not yet completed discovery in this 

action or preparation for trial. The responses given herein are without prejudice to 

Defendant’s right to produce evidence of additional facts. 

No incidental or implied admissions are intended by the responses herein. 

That Defendant answered or objected to any Request should not be taken as an admission 

that Defendant accepts or admits the existence of any "facts" set forth or assumed by such 

Request. The fact that Defendant has answered part or all of any Request is not intended to 

be, and should not be construed to be, a waiver by Defendant of any part of any objection to 

any Request. 

RESPONSES TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS 

ADMISSION NO.1: 

Trans Union admits that it received Baker’s 2/12/05 notice [Baker Initial Disclosures 

Doc. 4] with her complaint about illegal credit report access through the Dana Capital 

account and NCO. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.1.: 

5876181 Objection. This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and not 

2 
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reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request is 

overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. Plaintiff cannot recover 

damage based on events that occurred more than two years before she filed her complaint on 

June 15,2007. Damage claims based on consumer reports, which were disclosed more than 

two years prior to filing of the lawsuit, are timed barred. 15 U.S.C. §1681p. 

ADMISSION NO.2: 

Trans Union admits that it did not investigate Dana Capital in response to Baker's 

2/12/05 notice. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.2.: 

Objection. This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and not 

reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request is 

overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. Plaintiff cannot recover 

damage based on events that occurred more than two years before she filed her complaint on 

June 15,2007. Damage claims based on consumer reports, which were disclosed more than 

two yearsprior to filing of the lawsuit, aretimed barred. 15 U.S.C. §1681p. 

ADMISSION NO.3: 

Trans Union admits that it did not investigate the NCO resale of credit reports to 

Dana Capital. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.3.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the terms 

"NCO" or "resale." Plaintiff also failed to identify which "investigation" she is referring to 

or if there was ever any request by Plaintiff to investigate the undefined "NCO resale." 

Plaintiff also failed to identify the timeframe of the alleged investigation. 

Without waiving the objections asserted and to the extent the question is understood, 

Trans Union responds as follows: Deny. 

5876181 
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ADMISSION NO.4: 

Trans Union admits that it continued to provide credit reports to NCO for resale to 

Dana Capital. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.4.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "NCO" or 

"resale." 

ADMISSION NO.5: 

Trans Union admits that it profited from the sale of credit reports to NCO for resale 

to Dana Capital. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.5.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "NCO" or 

"resale." Plaintiff failed to define what was meant by the term "profited." This Request 

seeks confidential, proprietary, developmental, and/or commercial business infonnation. 

This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably 

calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, 

unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO.6: 

Trans Union admits that it sold Baker's credit report to NCO on 6/17/05. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.6.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "NCO." 

ADMISSION NO.7: 

Trans Union admits that it has no evidence of any collection creating a pennissible 

purpose for the 6/17/05 NCO credit inquiry. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.7.: 

5876\8.1 Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

4 
DEFENDANT TRANS UNION LLC'S RESPONSE TO 

PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS (SET ONE) 

�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�~�-�-
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definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "NCO." 

Plaintiff failed to define "collection." 

Without in any manner waiving the objections asserted and to the extent the question 

is understood, Trans Union responds as follows: Deny. 

ADMISSION NO.8: 

Trans Union admits that it has no documentation of any permissible purpose for the 

6/17/05 NCO credit inquiry. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.8.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "NCO." 

Without in any manner waiving the objections asserted and to the extent the question 

is understood, Trans Union responds as follows: Deny. 

ADMISSION NO.9: 

Trans Union admits that it provided Baker's credit data to NCO for resale to Dana 

Capital on 3/5/07. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO.9.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "NCO." 

Plaintiff failed to define "resale." 

ADMISSION NO. 10: 

Trans Union admits that it continues to sell credit reports to NCO. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 10.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "NCO" or 

"sell." 

ADMISSION NO. 11: 

Trans Union admits that it split Baker's credit report into two reports. 

�~�~�R�O�N�S�E TO ADMISSION NO. 11.: 
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Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the tenn 

"split." This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 12: 

Trans Union admits that it provided Baker's incomplete (split) credit reports to 

creditors and insurers. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 12.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the tenn 

"split." This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 13: 

Trans Union admits that it knew that it split Baker's credit report since at least 2002. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 13.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the tenn 

"split." This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 14: 

Trans Union admits that it failed to merge Baker's split credit report into one file. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 14.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the tenns 

"merge" and "split." This Request is unintelligible as phrased. This Request is overbroad, 

unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 15: 

Trans Union admits that it is not capable of storing the large amounts of consumer 

data without causing credit files to split. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 15.: 

5876181 
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Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the terms 

"data" and "split." This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope 

and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 16: 

Trans Union admits that creditors and insurers and prospective creditors and insurers 

reviewing Baker's Trans Union credit reports did not receive all data in Baker's Trans 

Union credit file. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 16.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the terms 

"insurers" and "prospective creditors and insurers." The term "all data" is vague and 

ambiguous. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and 

time. This Request requires Trans Union to speculate as to third parties' state of mind. 

ADMISSION NO. 17: 

Trans Union admits that it provided Baker's partial (split) credit reports on numerous 

occasions to Baker's existing creditors and insurers and to prospective creditors and 

Insurers. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 17.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the terms 

"partial (split)." Plaintiff failed to define the terms "insurers" and "prospective creditors and 

insurers." This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 18: 

Trans Union admits that since March 2006 it received Baker's disputes of the Capital 

One "Date Closed" for her client with the Trans Union file # . 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 18.: 

5876181 Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 
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definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "her client."� 

Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would violate Fair Credit� 

Reporting Act ("FCRA") § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the� 

privacy rights of third parties.� 

ADMISSION NO. 19:� 

Trans Union admits that in response to Baker's 3/2006 disputes, it corrected the 

Capital One "Date Closed" for her client with the Trans Union file # . 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 19.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "her client." 

Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would violate Fair Credit 

FCRA § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the privacy rights of 

third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 20: 

Trans Union admits that in 2007, it again reported the Capital One account without 

the "Date Closed" for Baker's client with the Trans Union file # . 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 20.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "Baker's 

client." Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would violate FCRA § 

1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the privacy rights of third 

parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 21: 

Trans Union admits that it received Baker's 10/15/07 dispute regarding the missing 

Capital One "Date Closed" for her client with the Trans Union file # : 

... On 4/6/06, Mariano Li finally fixed the discharged Capital One account 
5291 0716XXXX after numerous disputes and he added the date closed 
(7/01) to the reporting. 

5876181 
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On 10/1/07, my client ordered her FICO report and her score was down to 617 
(from 690 on 7/1/07), because AGAIN TU deleted the date closed! WHY??? 

Please IMMEDIATELY correct your reporting or preferably, delete all 
discharged accounts to avoid future problems. My client is seriously ill, 
currently receiving chemo therapy has to move and the LAST thing she needs 
is Trans Union causing her so much stress. 

For more details please see 
http://creditsuit.org/credit.php?/blog/comments/capital_one_again_deletes_dat 
e closed with tu fico score down to 617/ .. ,. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 21.:, 

Trans Union objects to this Request for Admission on the ground that it is not 

plrrased as a request for admission. This Request is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible. 

Plaintiff failed to define "her client." Disclosing credit information on anyone other than 

Plaintiff would violate FCRA § 1681b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades 

the privacy rights of third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 22: 

Trans Union admits that in response to Baker's 10/15/07 disputes, it corrected the 

Capital One "Date Closed" for her client with the Trans Union file #  

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 22.:, 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as plrrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "her client." 

Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would violate Fair Credit 

FCRA § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks infonnation which invades the privacy rights of 

third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 23: 

Trans Union admits that in response to Baker's 10/15/07 disputes, it reverted to an 

old address for her client with the Trans Union file # . 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 23.: 

587618\ 
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Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "her client." 

Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would violate Fair Credit 

FCRA § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the privacy rights of 

third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 24: 

Trans Union admits that it received Baker's 11/14/07 fax regarding her client with 

the Trans Union file # : 

4) Please explain how the discharged Capital One account Date Closed 
was deleted. 

The Trans Union credit report now contains the correct Date Closed. 

The Trans Union FICO score increased by 81 points to 698.� 
Trans Union previously corrected this date in response to our dispute. What� 
happened?� 

Will it be deleted again? 

Does my client have to continually purchase Trans Union credit reports? 

Is Trans Union going to reimburse my client for her time and expenses, 
including my fee? 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 24.: 

Trans Union objects to this Request for Admission on the ground that it is not 

phrased as a request for admission. This Request is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible. 

Plaintiff failed to define "her client." Disclosing credit information on anyone other than 

Plaintiff would violate FCRA § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades 

the privacy rights of third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 25: 

Trans Union admits that by 12/1/07, it again reported the Capital One account 

without the "Date Closed" for Baker's client with the Trans Union file # . 
5876181� 

10� 
DEFENDANT TRANS UNION LLC'S RESPONSE TO� 

PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS (SET ONE)� Case 3:07-cv-08032-JAT     Document 93-3      Filed 08/04/2008     Page 11 of 21



5

10

15

20

25

1 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 25.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "Baker's 

client." Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would violate FCRA § 

1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the privacy rights of third 

parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 26: 

Trans Union admits that it received Baker's 12/12/07 dispute for her client with the 

Trans Union file # : 

By 12/1/07, Trans Union had AGAIN deleted the Date Closed for the 
Capital One account. 

The FICO score dropped to 633 and the myFICO report still contained the old 
incorrect address. 

What does a consumer have to do to get the credit she deserves? 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 26.: 

Trans Union objects to this Request for Admission on the ground that it is not 

phrased as a request for admission. This Request is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible. 

Plaintiff failed to define "her client." Disclosing credit information on anyone other than 

Plaintiff would violate FCRA § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades 

the privacy rights of third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 27: 

Trans Union admits that its investigation of Baker's 12/12/07 dispute of the Capital 

One "Date Closed" for her client with the Trans Union file #  resulted in the 

verification of the reporting of the Capital One account without reporting the "Date Closed." 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 27.: 

Objection. This Request is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible. Plaintiff failed to 

�~�~�M�P�.�F "her client." Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would 
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violate FCRA § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the privacy� 

rights of third parties.� 

ADMISSION NO. 28:� 

Trans Union admits that despite receipt of Baker's numerous disputes, it failed to 

report the Capital One "Date Closed" for Baker's client with the Trans Union file # 

. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 28.:. 

Objection. This Request is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible. Plaintiff failed to 

define "Baker's client." Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would 

violate FCRA § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the privacy 

rights of third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 29: 

Trans Union admits that it failed to report the Capital One "Date Closed" for Baker's 

client with the Trans Union file #  to inflict damages on Baker. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 29.: 

Objection. This Request is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible. Plaintiff failed to 

define "Baker's client." Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would 

violate FCRA § 1681 b. This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the privacy 

rights of third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 30 

Trans Union admits that it frequently reports student loans with a current balance 

higher than the "High Balance". 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 30.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "student 

loans," "High Balance," and "frequently." This Request is not relevant to the subject matter 

of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

�~�'�i�l�M�n�c�e�. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 
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Disclosing credit information on anyone other than Plaintiff would violate FCRA § 1681b. 

This Interrogatory seeks information which invades the privacy rights of third parties. 

ADMISSION NO. 31: 

Trans Union admits that the correctly reported balance for any account can not 

possibly exceed the correctly reported "High Balance", the highest amount owed on the 

account. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 31.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased, and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define "correctly 

reported balance." This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, it requires speculation to answer. This Request is unintelligible. 

ADMISSION NO. 32: 

Trans Union admits that it continued to report a "High Balance" lower than the 

balance after receiving consumer disputes of the incorrectly reported "High Balance". 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 32.: 

Objection. This Request is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible. Plaintiff failed to 

define "High Balance." This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation 

and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request 

is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 33: 

Trans Union admits that Fair Isaac's FICO scores can be severely lowered due to the 

reporting of a balance higher than the "High Balance". 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 33.: 

Objection. This Request is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible. Plaintiff failed to 

define "High Balance." This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation 

and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request 

is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

�~�I�S�S�I�O�N NO. 34: 
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Trans Union admits that its TrueCredit credit scores can be 80 points higher than Fair 

Isaac's FICO scores. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 34.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the terms "TrueCredit credit scores" and "Fair Isaac's FICO scores." This 

Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated 

to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly 

burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 35: 

Trans Union admits that its TrueCredit credit scores are advertised on its consumer 

disclosures as the "TransUnion Personal Credit Score." 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 35.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the terms "TrueCredit credit scores." This Request is not relevant to the subject 

matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 36: 

Trans Union admits that its TrueCredit credit scores are not utilized by mortgage 

lenders. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 36.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the terms "TrueCredit credit scores." This Request is not relevant to the subject 

matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

�~�I�S�S�I�O�N NO. 37: 
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Trans Union admits that its TrueCredit credit scores are not utilized by any creditors 

to approve or deny credit applications. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 37.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the tenns "TrueCredit credit scores." This Request is not relevant to the subject 

matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 38: 

TransUnion admits that it makes no effort to understand FICO scoring principles. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 38.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. It is unclear what Plaintiff meant by 

"FICO scoring principles." This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this 

litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. 

This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 39: 

Trans Union admits that it prevented Baker from ordering her Trans Union credit 

reports with the FICO scores at myFICO.com. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 39.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. It is unclear what Plaintiff meant by 

"myFICO.com." This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and not 

reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request is 

overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 40: 

Trans Union admits that most mortgages are rated according to Fair Isaac's FICO 
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RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 40.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. It is unclear what Plaintiff meant by 

"Fair Isaac's FICO" and "rated." This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this 

litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. 

This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 41: 

Trans Union admits that it failed to implement any automated error checking such as 

software refusing or flagging obviously incorrect reporting such as a current balance higher 

than the "High Balance." 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 41.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the term "automated error checking" and "software refusing or flagging obviously 

incorrect reporting." This Request is unintelligible. 

ADMISSION NO. 42: 

Trans Union admits that it failed to implement any automated error checking such as 

software refusing or flagging obviously incorrect reporting such as a revolving account 

discharged through bankruptcy without a "Date Closed". 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 42.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the term "automated error checking" and "software refusing or flagging obviously 

incorrect reporting." This Request is unintelligible. 

ADMISSION NO. 43: 

Trans Union admits that it profited from the sales of credit reports to consumers. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 43.: 

5876181 Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 
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definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the term 

"profited." This Request seeks confidential, proprietary, developmental, and/or commercial 

business information. This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and 

not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. 

ADMISSION NO. 44: 

Trans Union admits that it profited from the sales of consumer credit reports to 

creditors who target consumers with bad credit for sUbprime credit offers. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 44.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define the term 

"profited." This Request seeks confidential, proprietary, developmental and/or commercial 

business information. This Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and 

not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. 

ADMISSION NO. 45: 

Trans Union admits that consumers purchasing their Trans Union credit reports at 

TrueCredit are subjected to numerous advertisements including credit offers and credit 

repaIr. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 45.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. This Request is not relevant to the 

subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in 

scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 46: 

Trans Union admits that it owns TrueCredit. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 46.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

MJlpitions provided, requires speculation to answer. This Request is not relevant to the 
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subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in 

scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 47: 

Trans Union admits that it profited from the advertisements presented to consumers 

at TrueCredit. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 47.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the terms "TrueCredit" and "profited." This Request is not relevant to the subject 

matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 48: 

Trans Union admits that the 4121104 Ameriquest inquiry on Baker's Trans Union 

credit reports was not reported to creditors as mortgage application. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 48.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speCUlation to answer. This Request is not relevant to the 

subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in 

scope and time. Plaintiff cannot recover damage based on events that occurred more than 

two years before she filed her complaint on June 15,2007. 15 U.S.C. §1681p. 

ADMISSION NO. 49: 

Trans Union admits that the 4/21/04 Ameriquest credit inquiry on Baker's Trans 

Union credit reports could not be deduplicated by FICO scoring software because it was not 

identified as mortgage inquiry. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 49.: 

587618.1 Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 
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definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. This Request is not relevant to the 

subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in 

scope and time. Plaintiff cannot recover damage based on events that occurred more than 

two years before she filed her complaint on June 15,2007. 15 U.S.C. §1681p. 

ADMISSION NO. 50: 

Trans Union admits that it blocked Baker from accessing her Trans Union report with 

the FICO score at myFICO.com. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 50.: 

Objection. This Request has been asked and answered. This Request is vague and 

ambiguous as phrased and based on the definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. 

It is unclear what Plaintiff meant by "myFICO.com." This Request is not relevant to the 

subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in 

scope and time. 

Without waiving this objection, Trans Union responds as follows: Deny. 

ADMISSION NO. 51: 

Trans Union admits that the Trans Union credit reports provided at TrueCredit do not 

contain all data reported to creditors. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 51.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the telIDS "TrueCredit" and "all data." This Request is not relevant to the subject 

matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 52: 

Trans Union admits that the hi-merged credit reports (Trans Union, Experian and 

�~�w�H�(�a�x�) credit reports provided at TrueCredit do not contain all data reported to creditors. 
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RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 52.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the tenns "Experian," "Equifax," "TrueCredit," and "all data." This Request is 

not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated to lead to 

the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly burdensome and 

oppressive in scope and time. 

ADMISSION NO. 53: 

Trans Union admits that the credit reports it sells through resellers such as 

PrivacyGuard, CreditKeeper and all other credit report resellers do not contain all data Trans 

Union reports to creditors. 

RESPONSE TO ADMISSION NO. 53.: 

Objection. This Request is vague and ambiguous as phrased and based on the 

definitions provided, requires speculation to answer. Plaintiff failed to define what was 

meant by the terms "PrivacyGuard," "CreditKeeper," "resellers," and "all data." This 

Request is not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and not reasonably calculated 

to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This Request is overbroad, unduly 

burdensome and oppressive in scope and time. 

DATED: May 22, 2008 MUSICK, PEELER & GARRETT LLP 

�~�-�-�-�-�-�-�:�;�2�-�-�-
By: 

Donald E. Bradley (CASBN 145037) 
650 Town Center Drive, Suite 1200 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
Attorneys for TRANS UNION LLC 
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